

PARISH OF KILCORNAN – BARONY OF KENRY

PARISH OF KILCORNAN

INDEX

	Page	Book
Kilcornan Ph.		1
Townlands &c.		
Ballycahane	3	1
Ballymacdonagh	8	1
Ballymartin	2	1
Fort	41	1
Ballynamona Ballyshonickbane	, 5	1
Ballyvogue	4	1
Bansha	ē	i
Blossomhill	9	1
Blue Lough	14	2 1
Boherboy	10	
Bushy Park House	43	1
Bushy Island	11	1
* • • •	1 8	2
Carrickanea	8	2
Castlegrey	13	1
Castle Grey	2	2
Castletown & Islands	12	
Castletown House	45	1
Castletown Glebe House Charter	46 44	1 1
Cloonnagalleen	17	1
Cow Park	16	i
Cragreagh	14	1
Croker's Park	15	1
Curragh Chase N.	21	1
Curragh Chase	22	1
Curragh Chase Cottage	4	2 2
Curragh Walter	13	2
Deegerty	18	1
Deereen	24	1
Deereen Castle ruins	5	2
Drumlohan	19	1 1
Drumminclara Drummoher	2 3 20	7
and the sound of the state of t	۷ -	•

INDEX (contd.)

	Page	Book
Garranard Glebe House Gleniska Graigues	26 46 13 27	1 1 2 1
Kilbreedy Kilbreedy Loughs Eilcornan Church Killeen Church ruins Grave Yard	29 12 9 28 6 7	1 2 2 1 2 2
Loughleen Island	19	2
Moig E W Glebe E. Mornane Nullenmasheen	30 31 25 32 15	1 1 1 2
Newtown	33	1
Pallas Pigott's Island Prospect Hill	34 20 1	1 2 2
Ringmoylin Rintulla	35 36	1
St. Bridget's Holy Well Shanbally Shannongrove Corn Mill Stonehall Church House Village Summerville House	21 39 16 37 10 3 11 38 42	2 1 2 1 2 2 2 1
Tinnacullia Walshpool Mills	40 17	1 2

PARISH OF KILCORNAN

Book 1

Kilcornan Ph.

-- By. Surveyor's Sketch Map

1

Cill Chornáin, St. Cornan's Church.

Kilcornan

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Report 1824

-- Terrier of Kilcornan

Killcornan

-- Revd. John Thomas Langford,

Minister

-- Down Survey

Kill Cornane

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Kilcornan -- Acts of Settlement &c. 1666-1684

This parish is situated in the N. portion of the County of Limerick, Barony of Kenry, and contains 9,346 acres, statute measure. It is bounded on the N. by the River Shannon, which separates it from the Co. of Clare; S. by the Phs. of Nantenan, Croagh and Adare; E. by the Phs. of Kildimo, Chapelrussel and Ardcanny; and W. by Iveruss and Askeaton Phs.

It is of an oblong form. Its greatest length from Ringmoylan Td. in the N. to Ballynamona Td. in the S., at the meeting of 3 parishes, viz., Kilcornan, Croagh and Nantenan, is 6 statute miles; and from Loughreedy in the E. to the point where the boundary is crossed by a road in Deegerty Td. in the W. is 3½ statute miles. It is a Rectory in the Diocese of Limerick.

Townlands

Ballymartin

-- B.S.S.M.

2

Baile Mháirtín, Martin's Town.

Ballymartin

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. Mr. Waller, Proprietor

-- Acts of Settlement &c. -- Civil Survey 1654-56

Ballymartine -- Civil Surve

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 391 acres. It is traversed by a road from N.E. to S.W.

The property of Revd. William Waller, Castletown, Pallas Kenry. Let to Mrs. Hunt, Limerick, on a lease of lives, who sublets to Edward Fitzgerald at £3 5s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre from 2s.6d. to 2s.8d. annually. Tithe free. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats & potatoes. Fuel scarce. There are 2 forts here, one of which is called Ballymartin.

Authority: Edwd. Fitzgerald, Rockville.

Ballycahaan

-- B.S.S.M.

3

Baile Uí Chatháin, O'Kane's Town.

Ballycahane

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819

-- Barony Map

-- Revd. J. T. Langford, Minister

-- Acts of Settlement, &c.

Bally Cahan

-- Civil Survey 1654-1656.

Situated in the N. part of the parish, and contains 255 statute acres.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Agent, Francis Berry, Esq., Tullamore. Let to 23 tenants on a lease of lives and years. Rent per acre £1 to £1 18s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 2s.8d. Tithe per acre 1s.8d. to 2s. Size of farms - $\frac{1}{2}$ acre to 22 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing names - Hifle and Shea.

Authority: Wm. Fitzgerald, Ballycahane.

Ballyvogue

-- B.S.S.M.

4

Baile Mhóig, Mogue's town.

Mogue or Maidoc is now anglicised Malachy, particularly in Leinster. J. O'D.

Ballyvogue

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

٠,

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Ballyvocoge

-- Civil Survey, 1654-56

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 224 statute acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere, Curragh, Adare.

Agent, Stephen De Vere, Esq., Curragh, Adare. Let to 3
tenants on a lease of 3 lives. Rent per acre £1 11s. Co.

Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s.8d.

to 2s.4d. Size of farms 23 to 28 acres. Soil argillaceous,
producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing names - Drew and Smith. There are 3 forts here.

Authority: Robert Smith, Cow Park.

Ballyshonuckbaun

-- B.S.S.M.

5

Baile Seonaic Ban, White Johnock's Town.

Seonac is Johnock, a man's name.

Ballyshonuckbaun (contd.)

Ballyshonickbane -- J. O'D.
Ballyshonickbawn -- Sur. &
Ballyshonigbane -- Revd. J
Bally Jonickebane -- Civil S

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- Revd. John T. Langford

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the E. of the parish, and contains 275 statute acres. It is traversed by a road from E. to W.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Agent, F. Berry, Esq. Let to Minor Dawson and Mr. Westropp. The former sublets to 5 tenants, and the latter to one tenant. Lease at will. Rent from 13s. to 24s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 2s.6d. Tithe per acre 3s. to 4s. Size of farms - Middlemen 24 to 40 acres. Soil light in parts, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names - O'Brien and MacMahon. There are three ancient forts here.

Authority: William Fitzgerald, Ballycahane.

Bansha

-- B.S.S.M.

6

Bainseach, a plain or level field.

Bensha

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford -- Presentment Book

Baunshy

-- Barony Map

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 104 acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere, Curragh, Adare. Agent, Stephen De Vere. Let to 3 tenants on a lease of years; rent from £1 to £1 2s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre from 1s.8d. to 2s. Size of farms 12 to 30 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names - McMahon and Connor.

Authority: Denis Shaughnessy, Ballyengland.

Ballynamona

-- B.S.S.M.

7

Baile na Móna, town of the bog.

Ballynamona

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Ballinamona

-- Barony Map

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Ballynemony

-- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

BallyneMoney

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 438 statute acres.

Ballynamona (contd.)

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. Agent, Stephen De Vere. Let to 20 tenants at will with the exception of four, who have leases of lives. Rent per acre 18s. to 20s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 3s. to 3s.3d. Size of farms 1 to 20 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Burns and Walsh. There are 4 forts here.

Authority: Widow Farrell, a tenant. .

Ballymacdonough

-- B.S.S.W.

8

Baile Mhic Donnchadha, MacDonough's town.

Ballymacdonagh

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

Bally McDonagh
Ballymacdonough

-- Barony Map

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 143 statute acres.

The property of Revd. William Waller, Castletown, Pallas Kenry. Let to 4 tenants on a lease of years at a rent varying from £1 to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 2s. to 2s.6d. Size of farms 10 to 30 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, cats & potatoes. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names - Miller and Kelly.

Authority: James Carroll, Cow-Park.

Blossomhill

-- B.S.S.M.

9

Sgeach na Bláithe, bush of the blossom. J. O'D.

Blossomhill

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Skenablea

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

Sgeach na Blaithe was the former name of this td., i,e., the blossomed bush.

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 164 statute acres. It is bounded on the E. by a road, and is also traversed by a road on the North.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller, Castletown. Let to 2 tenants on a lease of lives at £1 per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s.8d. to 2s. Size of farms 30 to 32 acres. Soil limestone, gravel, producing wheat, oats, barley & potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names - Kennedy. Blue Lake is situated on the boundary of this td., & contains pike and eel. There is a R. C. Chapel

Blossomhill (contd.)

here that can accomodate 500 persons; it was built in 1828. There is one fort here.

Authority ?

(not given).

Boherbwee

-- B.S.S.M.

10

Bothar Buidhe, yellow road.

Boherboy

-- J. O'D.

Boherbuy Boherbuoy -- Revd. J. T. Langford, Minister

-- Barony Map

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 78 acres. It is traversed by a road in two different directions.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Agent, Mr. Berry, Tullamore. Let to o tenants, some on leases, some at will. Rent from £1 to £1 10s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 2s.6d. Tithe per acre 1s.8d. to 2s.6d. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names - Ievers and Drew. Size of farms from ½ acre to 21 acres. There is one fort here. Authority: George Drew, a tenant.

Bushy Island

-- B.S.S.M.

11

Oilean na Sgeach, island of the bushes. J. O'D.

Bushy Island

-- J. O'D.

-- Barony Map

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Proprietor

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the N.W. extremity of the parish, 153 acres. It is bounded on the N. by the River Shannon.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller, Castletown, Pallas Kenry. Let to John Pepper, Esq., M.D. Bushy Park House is in this td; it is a neat building situated about 6 chains S. of the River Shannon, and annexed to it is a good range of offices.

Castletown & Islands.

-- B.S.S.M.

12

Baile an Chaisleáin, town of the castle.

Castletown &c.

-- J. O'D.

Castletown

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Barony Map

-- Presentment Book 1839

Castletown & Islands

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr. -- Revd. J. T. Langford, Minister

Part of Castletown -- Acts of Settlement, &c.

Called Islands

Castletown & Islands (contd.)

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 434 acres. It is traversed by a road on the South.

The Property of the Revd. William Waller, Castletown, Pallas Kenry, and this townland is the demesne of the proprietor. It is well planted with forest trees of various sorts of about 80 years growth. Castletown House, the residence of the proprietor, is a splendid building, and about 10 chains S. of the house is a garden, walled in by a 14 foot wall, with wall and bush fruit and with frames containing melons and cucumbers. The R. Shannon waters this td., and is supplied with salt and fresh water fish.

Castlegrey

-- B.S.S.M.

13

Caisleán Riach, grey castle.

Castlegrey -- J. O'D. (Castlereagh would be better. O'D.)

Castlegrey

-- Revd. Wm. Waller.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the south portion of the parish, and contains 120 acres.

The property of the Revd. William Waller. Middleman, G. Longford, Esq., who sublets to Mr. Francis Fosberry on a lease of lives. Mr. Fosberry again sublets to 2 tenants at will. Rent from 20s. to 22s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. yearly. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names - Neill and Sidley. There is a neat thatched cottage here, with a small garden and plantations forming an ornamental demesne. There is one fort here.

Cragreagh

-- B.S.S.M.

14

Craig Risch, grey rock.

Cragreagh

-- J. O'D.

-- Presentment Book

Cragreigh

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. J. T. Langford, Minister

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 90 acres. It is bounded on the N. by a road, and traversed by a road from N. to S.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Agent, Francis Berry, Esq. Middleman, Robt. Hall, Dublin, who sublets to 5 tenants on a lease of lives. Rent 30s. per acre.

Cragreagh (contd.)

Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 2s.8d. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Soil light, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names - Hogan and Hare. There are 3 forts here.

Crokers Park

-- B.S.S.M.

15

Croker's Park Crokers Park

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

-- Presentment Book

Crokerspark

-- Revd. J. T. Langford.

Situated in the E. portion of the parish, and contains 205 acres.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller. Let to 12 tenants on a lease of lives. Rent per acre 13s. to 20s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 1s.8d. to 2s.6d. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Collins and Kervick. There is one fort here.

Cow Park

-- B.S.S.M.

16

Pairc na mBo, park of the cows.

Cowpark

-- J. O'D.

-- County Table 1819
-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Cow Park

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824
-- Presentment Book

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 189 acres. It is bounded and traversed by roads in various directions.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere, Curragh, Adare. Agent, Stephen De Vere. Let to 5 occupying tenants on a lease of years. Rent per acre 27s. to 35s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s.8d. to 2s.6d. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Hunt and Foley. The ruins of Killeen church and burial ground for still-born children are situated There are also 3 forts.

Authority: Robert Smith, a tenant.

Cloonagoleen

-- B.S.S.M.

17

Cluain na gCaillin, lawn of the girls. O'D.

Cloonnagalleen

-- J. O'D.

Cloonagoleen

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

Clounogilleen Cloanegalleene

Cluoneogulleene

-- Revd. J. T. Langford -- Down Survey Map -- Civil Survey 1654-56

٠,

Cloonagoleen (contd.)

Situated in the E. of the parish, and contains 313 It is traversed by a road on the North (sic).

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller. Let to 8 occupying tenants at will. Rent from 15s. to 20s. per acre. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Nash and Fitzgerald. Cloonnagalleen Lake is situated here. There are 5 forts here.

Deegerty

-- B.S.S.M.

18

Dig-Gortaidh, ditch-fields, fields of the ditches, trenches, dikes. O'D.

Deegerty Deigerty -- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824 -- County Table 1819

Digerty

-- Barony Map -- Revd. J. T. Langford.

Digartee

-- Down Survey Map

Diggartie Dogarty

-- Civil Survey 1654-56 -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the S.W. of the parish, and contains 215 It is traversed by a road from E. to W.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. Agent, Stephen De Vere. Let to one tenant on a lease of years. Rent from 20s. to 25s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s. to 1s.6d. Size of farms - 60 acres. S argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Taylor. There are 2 forts here.

Drumlohan

-- B.S.S.M.

19

Drom Lochain, ridge of the little lake.

Dromlohan

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Barony Map

Drumlohan

-- Reva. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Dromloghane

-- Down Survey

Dromeloghane Drom Loghan

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the centre of the parish, and contains 375 acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. Let to 10 occupying tenants on a lease of lives. Rent from 18s. to £1 11s. 6d. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per

Drumlohan (contd.)

acre 1s.8d. to 2s. Size of farms from 4 to 50 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: Smith and Drew. There are 2 good farm houses, each 2-story high, with an orchard and some planting.

Drummaher

-- B.S.S.M.

20

Drom Mothair, ridge of the old ruin.

Drommoher

-- J. O'D.

Dromoherbeg &)
Dromohermore

-- Terrier of Kilcornan Ph.

Dromherbegg &)
Dromhermore

-- Down Survey

Dromeher

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the N.E. of the parish, and contains 129 acres. It is traversed by a line of road from N. to S.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Let to 16 tenants on a lease of lives and years. Rent from 21s. to 30s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 2s. to 2s.6d. Size of farms - 1 to 12 acres. Usual crops. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Flavan and Collins. There is an old mill on the north boundary of this td.

Currah Chase North

-- B.S.S.M.

21

Currach, a moor.

Curragh Chase N.

-- J. O'D.

Currah Chase N.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Curragh Chase N.

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 284 acres. It is traversed by a road from N. to S.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. This townland forms part of the demesne, and a considerable portion of it is planted. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s. to 2s.5d. Tithe per acre from 9d. to 3s. $10\frac{1}{2}$ d, Curragh Chase Cottage, the residence of Sir Aubrey De Vere Stewart, is in this Td. It possesses a very rich and commanding prospect of wood scenery.

Currah Chase

-- B.S.S.M.

22

Currah Chase Curragh Chase -- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 513 acres. It is traversed by a road from E. to W., and by a road from N. to S.

Currah Chase (contd.)

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. The entire of this td. is a demesne, and the principal part of it is planted. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.2d. to 2s.5d. Tithe per acre from 9d. to 3s.10½d. Curragh Lough or Water stands here. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel plenty. There are two forts here.

Drumminaclara

-- B.S.S.M.

23

Dromain a' Chláraig, De Clare's (?) little ridge. O'D.

Drominaclara

-- J. O'D.

Drominiclarig

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Situated in the E. of the parish, and contains 106 acres.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Let to 10 tenants, 5 at will and 5 on a lease of lives. Rent from 24s. to 28s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre 2s.6d. yearly. Tithe per acre 1s.8d. to 2s. Size of farms - ½ acre to 9 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing usual crops. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Kelly and Molony. There is one fort here.

Derreen

-- B.S.S.M.

24

Doirin, little oak grove.

Derreen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Fresentment Book

Situated in the E. of the parish, and contains 184 acres. The northern portion of this td. is traversed by a road.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller. Let to 21 tenants on a lease of years and lives. Rent from 13s. to 21s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 2s.6d. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Size of farms - 3 to 36 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Name - Rorke. The ruins of an old house, formerly the residence of the Garland family, stand here. There is one fort in this td.

Glebe of Moig East

-- B.S.S.N.

25

Móig, a plain or field. O'D.

Glebe of Moig East

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the N. of the parish. Its northern part is traversed by a road.

Glebe of Meig East (contd.)

The property of the Revd. Francis Langford, who occupies it during his life. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.2d. to 4s. Soil good, producing wheat, cats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. There is a good Glebe House, two stories high, built by occupier in the year 1800. On the Glebe are a good garden, offices, and a few trees. There is a church here with a tower. The church is capable of accomodating about 300 persons, and was built in the year 1831. Kilcornan Church ruins stood here; the walls are all down, and the foundations cannot be traced except by digging. There is a burying ground for all denominations.

Authority: Revd. John Thomas Langford.

Gurraunard

-- B.S.S.M.

26

Garran Árd, high thicket or shrubbery.

Garranard

-- J. O'D.

Granard

-- Acts of Settlement &c. -- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Garrane Ard

-- Down Survey

Garranearde

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. of the parish, and contains 167 acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. Let to 8 tenants at will. Rent per acre 20s. to 26s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s.8d. to 2s. Size of farms 1 to 25 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats & potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Hickey and Kennedy. Lough Callogy is situated in this td. and contains pike and cel.

Authority: Richard Mann, a Tenant.

Graige

-- B.S.S.M.

27

Gráig, a village. O'D.

Graigues

-- J. O'D.

Graige

-- Terrier of Kilcornan Ph.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Down Survey

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

-- Civil Survey 1654-56.

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 69 acres. It is bounded on the E. by a road.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Let to 3 occupying tenants on a lease of lives. Rent per acre 19s. to 30s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 2s.8d. Tithe per acre 2s. to 3s. Size of farms - 14 to 15 acres. Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: Reidy and Keeffe.

Killeen

-- B.S.S.M.

28

Cillin, little cell or church. O'D.

Killeen

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Killeene

-- Down Survey

Killane

-- Civil Survey 1654-56 -- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 91 acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere. Let to 3 occupying tenants at will. Rent per acre 20s. to 32s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 1s.6d. to 1s.8d. Size of farms from 12 to 30 acres. Soil rich heavy clay, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Langford and McMahon.

Authority: Thos. Kennedy, Shantholla.

Kilbreedy

-- B.S.S.M.

29

Cill Bhrighde, St. Bridget's Church.

Kilbreedy

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

Kilbriddy

-- Civil Survey 1654-56.

Situated in the S.W. of the parish, and contains 721 acres. It is traversed by a road from N. to S.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller, Castletown, Pallas Kenry. Let to 17 occupying tenants, some at will and some on a lease of lives. Rent per acre from £1 to 30s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 2s. to 2s.2d. Size of farms 4 to 104 acres. Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: Nash. There are 4 forts in this td.

Moig East

-- B.S.S.M.

30

Móig, a plain. O'D.

Moig East

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Moigue East

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Meogh

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the N. of the parish, and contains 116 acres. It is bounded on the West by a road.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller. Let to 3 tenants on a lease of lives. Rent, £1 to 30s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. Tithe per acre 3s. to 4s. Size of farms 4 to 32 acres.

Moig East (contd.)

Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Name: Long. There is a school here, containing 14 boys & 19 girls; Protestants 29, Catholics 4. Established in 1837 and supported by the London Hibernian Society, the Revd. Mr. Waller, and the pupils.

Moig West

-- B.S.S.M.

31

prond. Mou-ig.

See under Moig East.

Situated in the N.W. of the parish, and contains 218 acres. It is bounded on the N. by a road.

The property of the Revd. Wm. Waller. Let to 22 tenants on a lease of lives. Rent 25s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s. to 2s.6d. Titheper acre from 3s. to 3s.6d. Size of farms from 4 to 40 acres. Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Sheehy & Nowlan. There is a comfortable thatched house here, built in 1789, with a garden, ornamental ground and plantations of forest trees. There is a Tuck and Corn Mill at a bridge on the boundary of this townland.

Authority: Murty Neville, a tenant.

<u>Mornaan</u>

-- B.S.S.M.

32

Mornán, meaning not established, though it occurs frequently and is often anglicised Morning. O'D.

Mornane

-- J. O'D.

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Morenane

-- Down Survey

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

Situated in the W. of the parish, and contains 752 acres. It is traversed by a road from N. to S.

The property of William Cox, Esq., Balline, Ballingarry, who lets to Richd. Standish. This td. is under the management of the Court of Chancery, whose agent is John J. Carroll, Esq., Drewscourt. It is sublet to 37 tenants, some of whom have leases of lives and years, and some at will. Rent from 7s. to 40s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s.6d. Tithe per acre from 1s.6d. to 3s.6d. Size of farms from 8 to 37 acres. Soil light and craggy, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. There are 6 forts here.

Newtown

-- B.S.S.M.

33

Baile Nua, Newtown.

Newtown

-- J. O'D.

Newtown (contd.)

Newtown

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819

-- Barony Map

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Situated in the N.W. of the parish, and contains 365 acres.

The property of James Hewson, Esq., Hollywood House, Adare, who lets to 21 tenants, 19 of whom have leases of 1 life or 21 years, and 2 are tenants at will. Rent from £1 to £2 per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly from 2s.3d. to 4s. Tithe per acre from 1s.3d. to 3s.6d. Soil part light & loamy, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. There is a school here, containing 54 boys and 32 girls, all Roman Catholics. The teacher is paid by the pupils; quarterly rates - spelling 1s., reading and writing 1s.6d., arithmetic 2s. There is a small stream in this td., called the Walshpool River.

Authority: Edwd. Farrell. Newtown.

Pallas

-- B.S.S.W.

34

Páilis, a fort, a palace (of the fairies).

Pallas

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

-- Barony Map

Pallice als. Castle Fallice)

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Made Pallis everywhere. See King's County.

Situated in the N.E. of the parish, and contains 171 acres. It is traversed by a road from N. to E.

The property of Lord Charleville. Let to 3 tenants on a lease of one life. Rent per acre 27s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. Tithe per acre 3s. to 4s. Size of farms from ½ to 4 acres. Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Fuel scarce. Frevailing Names: Downes and McHenry. Authority: John McHenry, Pallis.

Ringmoylan

-- B.S.S.M.

35

Rinn Mhaoilin, Moylin's point or headland.

prond. Ringmoyleen.

Ringmoylan

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Reine Moyline -- Civil Survey 1654-56 Rinemoyline

-- Acts of Settlement &c.

Situated in the N. extremity of the parish, and contains

Ringmoylan (contd.)

114 acres. It is bounded on the E. by a road.

The property of Lord Charleville, Tullamore. Let to 14 tenants at will. Rent from £1 to 30s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Name: Kirby.

Rintholla

-- B.S.S.M.

. 36

Rinn Tula, headland or point of the hill. O'D.

Rintulla

-- J. O'D.

Rintolla

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

Reentulla Ruintulla -- Revd. J. T. Langford -- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 128 acres.

The property of the Revd. William Waller, who lets to a Miss Potter. She sublets to 3 tenants on a lease of years; rent from 15s. to 23s. per acre. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 2s.6d. Size of farms - 25 to 30 acres. Soil argillaceous; usual crops. Fuel plenty. Prevailing Names: Potter. There is one fort here.

Stonehall

-- B.S.S.M.

37

Aith a' Choiléir, the "Ford of the Quarry", is the Irish name of this td.

Stonehall

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. Wm. Waller, Propr.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Situated in the S. portion of the parish, and contains 201 acres.

The property of the Revd. William Waller. Let to 6 tenants on a lease of lives. Rent per acre from 15s. to 30s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Size of farms - 5 to 30 acres. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Westropp and Langford. Stonehall Village is in this townland, as are also the ruins of a Catholic Chapel and Stonehall Lodge, the residence of Mr. George Langford, built in 1801.

Summerville

-- B.S.S.M.

38

Summerville

-- J. O'D.

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Presentment Book

Summerville (contd.)

Situated in the N. portion of the parish, and contains 258 acres. It is traversed by a road from E. to W.

The property of Lord Charleville. Let to Harvey Moore, Esq., on a lease of lives. Rent per acre 50s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 2s.6d. to 3s. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Name: Morris. Summerville House, in this td., was built by the Hartney family in 1749; it is 3 story high, with a good garden, a pond, ornamental ground, and plantings. There is one fort here.

Shanbally

-- B.S.S.M.

39

Sean-Bhaile, old town.

Shanbally

-- J. O'D.

-- Presentment Book

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

-- Down Survey Shanballimore

-- Civil Survey 1654-56 Shannabally -- Acts of Settlement &c. Shanballymore

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 265 acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere, Curragh, Adare. Let to 6 tenants at will; rent per acre 14s.6d. to 32s. Co. Cess per acre yearly 2s.6d. to 3s. Tithe per acre 18d. to 20d. Size of farms - 10 to 30 acres. Soil argillaceous; usual crops of wheat oats and potatoes. Fuel scarce. Prevailing Names: Nestor and Coghlan. There are 2 forts here.

Teenacullia

-- B.S.S.M.

40

Tigh na Coille, the house of the wood.

Tinnacullia

-- J. O'D.

Theneculla

-- Sur. & Val. Ireland 1824

-- County Table 1819

Tiernaculla

-- Revd. J. T. Langford

Tinekelly

-- Down Survey

Tynekelly

-- Down Survey Map

-- Civil Survey 1654-56

-- Acts of Settlement &c. Tinekelly

Situated in the S. of the parish, and contains 247 acres.

The property of Sir Aubrey De Vere, Curragh, Adare. Let to one tenant on a lease of years and lives at £1 per acre. Soil argillaceous, producing wheat, oats and potatoes. Prevailing Name: MacMahon.

Miscellaneous Features

Ballymartin Fort

-- Local

41

Situated in the N. of Ballymartin Td.

This fort is the property of the Revd. Wm. Waller.

Summerville House

-- Barony Map

42

Situated in the Td. of Summerville.

The residence of Harvey Morris, Esq. Built in 1749, it is 3 stories high and in tolerably good repair.

Bushy Island

-- Barony Map

43

Bushy Park House

-- Local

-- See Letter

Situated in the N.W. of the Td. of Bushy Island.

The residence of John Peppard, M.D. This dwelling is quite modern and of great extent, commanding a rich and very picturesque view of wood, water and mountain scenery, together with the shipping to and from the City of Limerick. Its style of architecture, although simple, is chaste. Several thousand pounds have been expended on both the house and the demesne. It is converted into an Asylum for the Insane and Nervous.

Charter House

-- Local

44

Situated in Ringmoylan Td.

There was formerly a Charter School here; but it is now converted into a Police Station, containing 1 constable and 3 subs. It is a large building, 3 stories high, and is the property of the Incorporated Society, who have a lease for ever of 2 acres of land on which it stands.

Castletown House

-- Local

45

Castletown

-- See letter

(House is crossed out by the proprietor.)

Situated in Castletown Td.

The residence of the Revd. Wm. Waller. It is a rectangular building, two stories high, and of the composite Order of Architecture. There are a good set of stables and a garden to the south of it. There is also a spacious and well-planted demesne.

Glebe House

-- Local

46

In the Glebe of Moig East.

The residence of the Revd. Mr. Langford. It is a

Glebe House

square building, two stories high, built in the year 1800. Attached to it are a garden and a good set of stables.

End of Ph. of Kilcornan, Book 1.

PARISH OF KILCORNAN

Book 2

Miscellaneous Features

Prospect Hill

-- Proprietor

1

-- J. O'D.

Situated in Dromlohan Td.

The residence of Mr. James Ruttle. Built in the year 1803, it is 42 feet by 21 feet, is slated, and in good repair. It is situated on a nice eminence, and there is a large orchard annexed.

Castle Grey

-- C. W. Fosberry, Esq.

Caislean Riach, grey castle.

Castlereagh is the true English name. J. O'D.

Situated in the N. of the Td. of Castle Grey.

The residence of Charles Widenham Fosbery. It is built in Cottage style, and is surrounded with planting.

Stone Hall House

-- Fatk. Ball, Stonehall.

3

Stonehall

-- Lewis

Situated in Stonehall Td., to the N. of Stonehall Village.

The residence of Mr. George Langford. It was built in 1801, and is a plain, slated house. It is in a handsome situation, lying to the E. of Curragh Chase.

Curragh Chase Cottage

-- Mr. T. H. Potter

See Td.

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the Td. of Curragh Chase N.

The residence of Sir Aubrey De Vere's steward. It is a neat and commodious dwelling, commanding a rich prospect of wood scenery. Attached are a good garden and set of offices. The ruins of an old castle lie between the Cottage and the garden.

Derreen Castle (ruins) -- Local

5

Caisleán a' Doirín, castle of the little oak wood. O'D.

In the West of Derreen Td.

The ruins are 50 ft. long from E. to W., and 20 ft. broad. The side walls are nearly mouldered away, but the gables, which are covered with ivy, remain perfect.

Killeen Church (ruins)

-- Local -- J. O'D. 6

Situated in the east portion of the Td. of Cow Park.

These ruins are 44 ft. long and 24 ft. broad. The walls are perfect and covered with ivy. In the S. end is a very neat font, the top of which consists of 4 equal segments of circles, and gradually narrowing until it terminates in a point at the bottom. There is a pointed doorway in the S. wall.

Killeen Grave Yard

-- Local

7

Situated in the Td. of Kilbreedy.

This is a burying place for children only. There are no ruins here.

Carrigania Castle (ruins) -- Local

8

Carraig an Fhiaidh, rock of the stag.

Carriganea

-- J. O'D.

Situated in the N. of the Td. of Ballyshonickbane.

This castle was built on a limestone rock, surrounded by a bog. A part of the N. and S. wall is standing, about 18 feet high. The breadth inside is 16 ft; but the entire of the foundation cannot be traced.

Kilcornan (Ph.) Church) -- Local

9

Cill Chornáin, St. Cornan's Church.

Situated in the Glebe of Moig East.

This is a spacious, rectangular building with a square tower in front. It was built in 1831, and is capable of accommodating about 300 persons.

Stone Hall Chapel

-- Local

10

See Td. J. O'D.

Situated in Blossomhill Td.

This is a rectangular building, 62 ft. long & 34 ft. broad. It was built by John Waller, Esq., of Castletown, in 1828, as is cut in front on a hewn limestone in large characters.

Stone Hall Village

-- Local

11

See Td. J. O'D.

Stone Hall Village (contd.)

Situated in the Td. of Stonehall.

This village contains 33 houses. The following are the various callings of the inhabitants: - 1 Publican, 3 Hucksters, 2 Shoemakers, 2 Taylors, 2 Carpenters, 2 Weavers, a police station containing 1 sergeant and 2 subconstables, and the ruins of a Catholic Chapel.

Kilbreedy Loughs

-- Local

12

See Townland. J. O'D.

Situated on the parish boundary of Kildimo and Kilcornan.

The smaller of these lakes, which lies to the South, contains portions of the tds. of Kilbreedy and Cloonnagalleen in Kilcornan Ph. and Craggaunacree in Kildimo Ph. The larger contains portions of Cloonnagalleen Td. in Kilcornan Ph. and Ballyashea and Craggaunacree Tds. in the Ph. of Kildimo.

Gleniska

-- Local

13

Gleann Uisce, Glen of the water.

instead of Curragh Water) -- Sir Aubrey De Vere, Propr.

Situated in the Demesne of Curragh Chase.

This is an artificial pond, constructed for ornament only.

Blue Lough

-- Local -- J. O'D. 14

Loch Ghorm. blue lake.

Situated on the boundary between the tds. of Curragh and Stonehall, Curragh Chase and Blossomhill.

This is a small oblong lake, with a small island in the middle of it.

Mullamosheen Bridge

-- Local

15

Muileann Maisin, Masin's Mill. O'D.

Mullenmasheen

--- J. O'D.

Situated on the boundary between Tuogh Td., in the Ph. of Adare, and Kilbreedy Td., in the Ph. of Kilcornan.

This is a small bridge, situated on the road leading to Adare.

Shannongrove Corn Mill -- Morgan Williams, Pallas.

16

Shannongrove Corn Mills (contd.)

Situated in the N. of Drommoher Td.

This mill is nearly dilapidated. It is an overshot, & is badly supplied with water.

Walshpool Mills -- Murtagh Neville, Moig W. 17

Situated in the Td. of Moig West.

There are a Corn and a Tuck Mill here. They are both overshot and well supplied with water.

Bushy Island -- Local -- J. O'D.

Situated in the R. Shannon, to the N.W. of the Td. of Bushy Island.

The property of William Waller, Castletown. It belongs to Bushy Island Td., and can be reached from the shore at low water mark.

<u>Loughline Island</u> -- Local 19

Loch Lin, lake of the flax.

Loughleen -- J. O'D.

Situated in the R. Shannon to the N. of Castletown Td.

This island is the property of $\mbox{Wm.}$ Waller, Castletown, and belongs to Castletown Td.

Picketts Island -- Local 20

Pigott's Island is the true name. J. O'D.

Piggott's Island -- Arthur Morris, Esq., Agent to Ld. Charleville.

Situated in the R. Shannon, to the N. of the Td. of Castletown & Islands, to which it belongs.

It is the property of William Waller, Esq., Castletown.

St. Bridget's Holy Well -- Local -- J. O'D.

Situated in the south of Stonehall Td.

Stations are performed here by the peasantry.

End of the Ph. of Kilcornan

٠,